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EXPLANATORY NOTE

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&irares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “PrefeStock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common pastrigiinterests as “Common Units” and the OperaBagnerships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units.” References to “aed “our’mean the Company and the Operating Partnershilectiokly, unless the conte
indicates otherwise.

The Company conducts its activities through ther@jireg Partnership and is its sole general parffiee. partnership agreement provi
that the Operating Partnership will assume andvgdan due, or reimburse the Company for paymerdlb€osts and expenses relating tc
ownership and operations of, or for the benefittiog Operating Partnership. The partnership agreefoether provides that all expense:
the Company are deemed to be incurred for the erighe Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaluly 21, 2014 the latest practicable date for financial infotiom prior to the filing
of this Quarterly Report.

This report combines the Quarterly Reports on FAG¥Q for the period ended June 30, 2af4the Company and the Operal
Partnership. We believe combining the quarterlyregpinto this single report results in the follogibenefits:

» combined reports better reflect how managemenfrarestors view the business as a single operatiitg

» combined reports enhance investors' understandirtjeoCompany and the Operating Partnership by lemathem to view th
business as a whole and in the same manner as emaeatj

e combined reports are more efficient for the Compang the Operating Partnership and result in savimgime, effort and expen:
and

« combined reports are more efficient for investgrgduducing duplicative disclosure and providingragke document for their revie

To help investors understand the significant ddferes between the Company and the Operating Paripgthis report presents
following separate sections for each of the Compartythe Operating Partnership:

+ Consolidated Financial Stateme
» the following Notes to Consolidated Financial Sta¢ats

* Note 8- Noncontrolling Interests; al

* Note 13- Earnings Per Share and Per L
* Item 4 -Controls and Procedures; :
* Item 6 - Certifications of CEO and CFO Pursuanections 302 and 906 of the Sarba@esey Act.
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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Development in process
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,390 $h&48, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&2@6 and $302, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwHace of $798 and $1,063, respectively
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June 30, December 31,

2014 2013

$ 382,57 % 393,60:
3,724,55. 3,748,86!
114,79( 44,62
104,87 110,37-
4,326,79. 4,297,46
(1,0112,47) (985,24)
3,315,311 3,312,22.
68,15¢ —
18,69¢ 10,18¢
10,60: 14,16¢
27,97 26,43(
10,14( 26,40¢
132,05: 126,01



Investments in unconsolidated affiliates

Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdared amortization of $102,430 and $92,220, respalgt

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiortization of $13,466 and $12,905,
respectively

Total Assets
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil
Financing obligations
Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSiiliquidation preference $1,000 per share), 29,0

shares issued and outstanding
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

90,361,707 and 89,920,915 shares issued and aditejanespectively
Additional paid-in capital
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates

Total Equity

Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.

30,38 29,90:
218,02: 222,21:
45,45 39,56:

$ 3,876,80 3,807,10
$  2,058,97. 1,956,29
219,29¢ 218,96:
24,67 26,66¢
2,302,941 2,201,92!
123,20! 106,48(
29,077 29,077

904 89¢

2,366,28 2,370,36:
(962,209 (920,43)
(4,719 (2,617
1,429,33i 1,477,301
21,31% 21,39¢
1,450,65! 1,498,691

$ 3,876,800 3,807,10
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Gains/(losses) on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositio of investment properties and activity in
unconsolidated affiliates

Gains/(losses) on disposition of property
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations
Impairments of real estate assets
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates
Dividends on Preferred Stock

Net income available for common stockholders

Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dilute

Dividends declared per Common Share

Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders

Net income available for common stockholders

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
152,72; $ 13261¢ $ 301,170 $ 262,99
55,27 47,31; 111,66 93,91
50,44 40,62: 98,60¢ 80,71
58¢ — 58¢ —
8,73¢ 8,391 19,44’ 18,97¢
115,03 96,33 230,30 193,60:
20,64( 22,39¢ 41,39( 45,19¢
79¢ 94¢ 1,451 1,897
(226) (60) (266) 61
21,21 23,28t 42,57t 47,15¢
1,41( 1,617 2,80¢ 3,40(
18 — 18 (169
1,42¢ 1,617 2,821 3,23¢
17,89¢ 14,61 31,11¢ 25,47
5,947 37) 5,947 37)
667 912 63¢ 1,34¢
24,51 15,48 37,70 26,78
— 1,99¢ — 4,33¢
— (1,066) — (2,199
— 13,16: 384 14,40
— 14,09: 384 16,55:
24,51 29,57¢ 38,08t 43,33¢
(742) (1,249 (1,140 (1,829
(43¢) (187) (861) (390)
(627) (627) (1,259 (1,259
22,70¢ $ 2752 $ 34,83 $ 39,87
026 $ 017 $ 036 $  0.3C
— 0.1€ 0.01 0.1¢
026 $ 03 $ 03¢ $  0.4¢
90,25 82,81 90,11 81,92
026 $ 017 $ 036 $  0.3C
— 0.1€ 0.01 0.1¢
026 $ 03: $ 03¢ $  0.4€
93,31 86,63 93,17: 85,75:
0428 $ 0428 $ 085 $  0.85
22,70¢ $ 14,03 $ 3446° $ 24,03
— 13,48¢ 372 15,84(
2270¢ $ 2752 $ 34,83t $ 39,87




See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 2451: $ 2957¢ $ 38,086 $ 43,33¢
Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond 10t (92) 27C 29¢
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (2,846 6,31¢ (4,250 6,59¢
Amortization of cash flow hedges 944 80C 1,872 1,58¢
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (2,797 7,02¢ (2,109¢ 8,48¢
Total comprehensive income 22,71¢ 36,607 35,98( 51,82t
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (1,180 (1,430 (2,007 (2,214
Comprehensive income attributable to common stddeins $ 2153 § 35170 § 3397¢ § 4961

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2013 89,920,91 $ 89 $ 29,077 $ 2,370,360 $ (2,61) $ 21,3% $ (920,43) $ 1,498,69
Issuances of Common Stock, net of shares redeepnéaixf
withholdings 281,99. 3 — 8,70¢ — — — 8,71z
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 4,417 — — 162 — — — 162
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (76,605 (76,60%)
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (1,259 (1,259
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (18,33) — — — (18,33)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — — (940) — (940
Issuances of restricted stock 154,38 — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture 2 — 5,37¢ — — — 5,381
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (1,140 (1,140
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates — — — — 861 (861) —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 38,08¢ 38,08¢
Other comprehensive loss — — — (2,109¢) — — (2,109)
Total comprehensive income 35,98(
Balance at June 30, 2014 90,361,70 $ 904 $ 29,077 $ 2,366,28. $ 4,719 % 21,317 $ (962,20%) $ 1,450,65!
Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 80,311,43 $ 802 $ 29,077 $ 2,040,300 $ (12,62 $ 4,75  $ (897,419 $ 1,164,89
Issuances of Common Stock, net of shares redeepnéaixf
withholdings 3,434,68 34 — 122,45¢ — — — 122,49(
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 72,47 — — 2,851 — — — 2,851
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (69,56%) (69,56%)
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (1,259 (1,259
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (9,649 — — — (9,649
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — — (409) — (40¢)
Issuances of restricted stock 151,63( — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture (1,819 3 — 4,73¢ — — — 4,737
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (1,829 (1,829
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates — — — — 39C (390 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 43,33¢ 43,33¢
Other comprehensive income — — — 8,48¢ — — 8,48¢
Total comprehensive income 51,82t
Balance at June 30, 2013 83,968,41 $ 84C $ 29,077 $ 2,160,69¢ $ 4,14 % 473 % (927,11) $ 1,264,09:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable
Accrued interest on mortgages and notes receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fdueadjustments
Impairments of real estate assets
(Gains)/losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ffits
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiedil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired
Investments in development in process
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts
Investments in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aties
Investments in mortgages and notes receivable
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites
Net cash (used in) investing activities
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock
Redemptions of Common Units
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&ating Partnership
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings
Borrowings on revolving credit facility

Repayments of revolving credit facility

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2014 2013
38,08t $ 43,33¢
98,60¢ 84,76"

234 (199)
5,381 4,737
1,27¢ 38C

(232) —
1,451 1,891
1,872 1,58¢
(902) =
58¢ 2,19¢
19 164
(6,33)) (14,370
(63¢) (1,349
(62¢) (391)
1,21¢ 2,821
1,491 2,29t
(4,965) (2,289
(10,36%) (8,009
(11,59)) (661)
114,53- 116,92¢
— (228,46))
(69,929 (11,499
(54,799 (42,34
(28,877 (26,466
8,97¢ 60,38:
46¢ 43¢
(234) (432)
16,81% 27¢
(6,225) (429

68¢ 7,85:%

(133,11) (240,68Y)

(76,605 (69,569
(939 —
(1,259 (1,259
(2,499 (3,140
(940) (409)
11,40« 126,73t
(42) (1,719
(2,650) (2,537)
302,10( 346,30(
(360,80() (233,90()



Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable
Payments on financing obligations

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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296,94¢ —
(134,649 (39,61()
(1,369 (575)
(2,467 (242)
27,09: 120,09
851t $ (3,66
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéh&incing activities:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of naalifipd deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieiga Partnership to fair value
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

Receivable related to redemption of investmenticomsolidated affiliate

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Six Months Ended

June 30,
2014 2013
8,51t % (3,667
10,18¢ 13,78:

18,69¢ $ 10,12:

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013

41,46¢ % 40,48(

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2014 2013

(4,250 $ 6,59¢
162 2,851
10,72¢ 12,61¢
16,99 17,73:
13,27: 11,361
21C 31z
18,33} 9,64¢
27C 29¢
4,66( —
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pidarte)

Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Development in process
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,390 $h&48, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&2@6 and $302, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $798 and $1,063, respectively
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdared amortization of $102,430 and $92,220, respagt

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaortization of $13,466 and $12,905,
respectively

Total Assets
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedil
Financing obligations
Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 2,936,955 and 2,943,872 outstandespectively

Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferencégd®0 per unit), 29,077 units issued and
outstanding

Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units
Equity:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 928,899 and 924,56&anding, respectively
Limited partner Common Units, 89,024,000 and 88,58G outstanding, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates
Total Equity

Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnersimits and Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
382,57 % 393,60:
3,724,55. 3,748,86!
114,79( 44,62
104,87 110,37-
4,326,79: 4,297,46/
(1,011,47) (985,24,
3,315,31! 3,312,22;
68,15¢ —
18,79: 10,28:
10,60: 14,16¢
27,97 26,43(
10,14( 26,40¢
132,05: 126,01
30,38 29,90:
218,02: 222,21:
45,38t 39,56:
3,876,82. $  3,807,19
2,058,97. $ 1,956,29
219,25( 218,88
24,67: 26,66¢
2,302,89. 2,201,85!
123,20! 106,48(
29,071 29,071
152,28: 135,55
14,04¢ 14,50¢
1,391,00: 1,436,49
(4,719 (2,617
21,317 21,39¢
1,421,64 1,469,79
3,876,822 $  3,807,19
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Gains/(losses) on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositin of investment properties and activity in
unconsolidated affiliates

Gains/(losses) on disposition of property
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations
Impairments of real estate assets

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim consolidated affiliates
Distributions on Preferred Units

Net income available for common unitholders

Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted

Distributions declared per Common Unit

Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 152,72. 132,61¢ 301,17¢ 262,99!
55,25¢ 47,29t 111,63: 93,91¢
50,44 40,62« 98,60¢ 80,71:
58¢ — 58¢ —
8,75( 8,41¢ 19,48( 18,97¢
115,03¢ 96,33¢ 230,30¢ 193,60:
20,64( 22,39¢ 41,39( 45,19¢
79¢ 94¢ 1,451 1,891
(22¢) (60) (26€) 61
21,218 23,28¢ 42,57t 47,15¢
1,41( 1,615 2,80¢ 3,40(
18 — 18 (164

1,42¢ 1,615 2,821 3,23¢
17,89¢ 14,61 31,11¢ 25,47¢
5,947 (37 5,947 (37
667 91€ 63€ 1,29¢
24,51: 15,49( 37,70« 26,737
— 1,99¢ — 4,33¢
— (1,06€) — (2,199

— 13,168 384 14,40°

— 14,09: 384 16,55:
24,51: 29,58: 38,08¢ 43,28¢
(43¢) (187) (867) (390
(627) (627) (1,259 (1,259

$ 23,44 28,76¢ SSRONTE 41,64¢
$ 0.2 0.17 0.3¢ 0.3C
— 0.1¢€ 0.01 0.1¢

$ 0.2t 0.3¢ 0.3¢ 0.4¢
92,78: 86,09( 92,64( 85,22!

$ 0.28 0.17 0.3¢ 0.3C
— 0.1¢€ 0.01 0.1¢

$ 0.2t 0.3¢ 0.3¢ 0.4¢
92,90: 86,22: 92,76: 85,34

$ 0.42¢ 0.42¢ 0.85( 0.85(
$ 2344 14,67¢ 35,58¢ 25,09:
— 14,09: 384 16,55

$ 23,44 28,76¢ 35,97¢ 41,64t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Amortization of cash flow hedges

Total other comprehensive income/(loss)

Total comprehensive income
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nonodirty interests

Comprehensive income attributable to common urtisl

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013

2014 2013

24,51 $ 29,58.

38,08t $ 43,28¢

108 (91) 27C 29¢
(2,846) 6,31¢ (4,250) 6,59¢
944 80C 1,872 1,58¢
(1,797 7,02¢ (2,109) 8,48¢
22,71t 36,61( 35,98( 51,77¢
(43¢) (187) (861) (390

22,277 $ 36,42!

35,11¢ $ 51,38¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 14,50¢ $ 1,436,490 $ (2,61)) 21,3%¢ $ 1,469,79.
Issuances of Common Units, net of units redeemethfowithholdings 87 8,62t — — 8,71:
Redemptions of Common Units (0] 92 — — (93
Distributions paid on Common Units (78¢) (77,96¢€) — — (78,759
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (13 (1,247 — — (1,259
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture 54 5,327 — — 5,381
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates — — — (940) (940)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valnd
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar a7y (17,009 — — 17,179
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssis consolidated
affiliates (©)] (852) — 861 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 381 37,70 — — 38,08¢
Other comprehensive loss — — (2,10¢) — (2,109
Total comprehensive income 35,98(
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 14,046  $ 1,391,00. $ (4,719 21,317 $ 1,421,64
Common Units )
Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 11,427 $ 1,131,48 % (12,62%) 4,75  $ 1,135,03:
Issuances of Common Units, net of units redeemethfowithholdings 1,22¢ 121,26! — — 122,49(
Distributions paid on Common Units (724 (71,637) — — (72,35%)
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (23) (2,247 — — (1,259
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture 47 4,69( — — 4,737
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in conidated affiliates — — — (40¢) (40¢)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valne
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (59) (5,927 — — (5,986
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated
affiliates (4) (386) — 39C —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 43z 42,85¢ — — 43,28¢
Other comprehensive income — — 8,48¢ — 8,48¢
Total comprehensive income 51,77¢
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 12,33: % 1,221,10 $ (4,149 4,73t $ 1,234,03:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable
Accrued interest on mortgages and notes receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fdueadjustments
Impairments of real estate assets
(Gains)/losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ffits
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiedil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired
Investments in development in process
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts
Investments in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aties
Investments in mortgages and notes receivable
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites
Net cash (used in) investing activities
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units
Redemptions of Common Units
Distributions on Preferred Units
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in condated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings
Borrowings on revolving credit facility
Repayments of revolving credit facility

Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2014 2013
38,08t $ 43,28¢
98,60¢ 84,76"

234 (199)
5,381 4,737
1,27¢ 38C

(232) —
1,451 1,891
1,872 1,58¢
(902) =
58¢ 2,19¢

19 164

(6,33)) (14,370
(63¢) (1,299
(62¢) (391)
1,21¢ 2,814
1,491 2,29t
(4,897 (2,189
(10,36%) (8,009
(11,569 (587)
114,63¢ 117,08:
— (228,46))
(69,929 (11,499
(54,799 (42,34
(28,877 (26,466
8,97¢ 60,38:
46¢ 43¢
(234) (432)
16,81% 27¢
(6,225) (429

68¢ 7,85:%

(133,11) (240,68Y)

(78,759 (72,359
(939 —
(1,259 (1,259
(940 (40¢)
11,40« 126,73t
(42) (1,711
(2,650) (2,537)

302,10( 346,30(

(360,801 (233,900

296,94¢ —



Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Payments on financing obligations

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéh&incing activities:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of naalified deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

Receivable related to redemption of investmenticomsolidated affiliate

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Six Months Ended

June 30,
2014 2013
851 $ (3,662
10,28: 13,86

18,797 $ 10,20¢

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013

41,46¢ $ 40,48(

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2014 2013
(4,250 $ 6,59¢
10,72¢ 12,61¢
16,99 17,73:
13,27: 11,36:

21C 31z
16,72¢ 5,48
27C 29¢
4,66( —
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) is dyfiuhtegrated real estate investment trust (“REIfHat provides leasing, managem
development, construction and other custonatated services for its properties and for thiadties. The Company conducts its activ
through Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership (ti@ptrating Partnership”). At June 30, 2014 , we avoehad an interest iB2.1 millior
rentable square feet of in-service office, indastand retail properties, 0.9 millientable square feet of office properties undeeligmmen
and approximately 600 acres of development land.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &joer Partnership. At June 30, 20lthe Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 90.0 million , or 96.9% , of the Common Unitsthe Operating Partnership. Limited partners olag remaining 2.9 milliorCommor
Units. During the six months ended June 30, 20flZe,Company redeemed 2,500 Common Units for less $#0.1 millionin cash an
redeemed 4,417 Common Units for a like number afeiof Common Stock.

Common Stock Offerings

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2@id Company issued 50,293 and 73,8f@res of Common Stock, respectiv
under its equity sales agreements at an average gades price of $38.38 and $38p@5 share, respectively, and received net procedids
sales commissions, of $1.9 million and $2.8 milliorespectively. As a result of this activity and tredemptions discussed above,
percentage of Common Units owned by the Compamgased from 96.8% at December 31, 2013 to 96.9%ra 30, 2014 .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Statements ofdme for the three and six months ended June 3B ®&@re retrospectively revis
from previously reported amounts to reflect in distinued operations the operations for those ptimgseclassified as discontinued operations.

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statementsidecthe Operating Partnership, wholly owned subsies and those entities
which the Company has the controlling interest. Tgerating Partnership's Consolidated FinanciateStants include wholly own
subsidiaries and those entities in which the OpagadRartnership has the controlling interest. Atercompany transactions and accounts
been eliminated. At June 30, 2014 and Decembe2@3, we had involvement with, but are not the primbepeficiary in, an entity that \
concluded to be a variable interest entity (see!8$pt

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stanta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiabimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have condensed oitemingertain notes and other information from th&erim Consolidated Financ
Statements presented in this Quarterly Report ewmified by SEC rules and regulations. These Codatdd Financial Statements shoult
read in conjunction with our 2013 Annual ReportFmrm 10-K.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af

the amounts reported in the Consolidated FinaBtatiements and accompanying notes. Actual resulisl cliffer from those estimates.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB®Qently issued an accounting standard update doires only those real est
asset sales representing a strategic shift in tpesa(e.g., a disposal of a major geographic aresmmajor line of business) to be reflecte
discontinued operations. This accounting standpdhte is required to be adopted in 2015. Early tidiojs permitted, but only for real est
asset sales that have not been previously refledeatiscontinued operations. We elected to eadptathe accounting standard update ¢
April 1, 2014, resulting in the operations of cuntrperiod dispositions and property classified alsl fior sale at June 30, 2014 being inclt
in continuing operations on our Consolidated Statesof Income. Prior to adoption, we were geterabjuired to reflect all real estate a:
sales as discontinued operations, which requireldssification of the earnings of the sold assetmfcontinuing operations for all peric
presented.

The FASB recently issued an accounting standardatepthat requires the use of a new fstep model to recognize revenue f
customer contracts. The fivetep model requires that we identify the contraith ihe customer, identify the performance obligasi in th:
contract, determine the transaction price, allothgetransaction price to the performance obligetion the contract and recognize reve
when we satisfy the performance obligations. Wd ®alto be required to disclose information regagdihe nature, amount, timing &
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising foamtracts with customers. The accounting standadate is required to be adopted in 2!
Retrospective application is required either topalliods presented or with the cumulative effednifal adoption recognized in the perioc
adoption. We are in the process of evaluatingabtounting standard update.

2. Real Estate Assets
Dispositions

During the second quarter of 2014, we sold two lpattels in Atlanta, GA in separate transactiomsafo aggregate sale price $8.5
million and recorded aggregate gains on disposifgoroperty of $5.9 million .

Impairments
During the second quarter of 2014, we recorded impmnts of real estate assets of $0.6 milliwnan office property in Greensboro, |
This impairment was due to a change in the assummag of future disposition and leasing assumpijonhich reduced the future expec

cash flows from the impaired property.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antbsoeceivable:

Seller financing (first mortgages)
Less allowance

Mortgage receivable
Less allowance

Promissory notes
Less allowance

Mortgages and notes receivable, net

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
$ — 3 16,45«
— 16,45«
9,901 9,43¢
9,901 9,43t
514 822
(275) (302)
23¢ 52C
$ 10,14C % 26,40¢

During 2010, we provided seller financing in corgtion with two disposition transactions. We accedrfor thes dispositions using tl
installment method, whereby a gain on dispositibproperty was deferred until the seller financings repaid. During the first quarter
2014, the $16.5 million of seller financing waslyulepaid and we recorded the $0.4 million gaind@position of property.

During 2012, we provided secured acquisition finagdo a third party. We also agreed to loan sihatd tparty $8.4 millioron a secure
basis to fund future infrastructure development. oksJune 30, 2014 , $0.5 milliohas been funded to the third party for infrastrce
development. We concluded this arrangement to kiatarest in a variable interest entity. Howevémnce we do not have the power to di
matters that most significantly impact the actestiof the entity, we do not qualify as the primaeneficiary. Accordingly, the entity is r
consolidated. Our risk of loss with respect to thisangement is limited to the carrying value of thortgage receivable and the fu

infrastructure development funding commitment.

We evaluate the ability to collect our mortgaged antes receivable by monitoring the leasing dtesisand/or market fundamentals
these assets. As of June 30, 2014 , our mortgagesaes receivable were not in default and thenewo other indicators of impairment.

The following table sets forth our notes receivalewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Beginning notes receivable allowance
Recoveries/write-offs/other

Total notes receivable allowance

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 30C $ 437 % 302 $ 182
(25) (61) (27) 194

$ 271t $ 37¢  $ 27t $ 37¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

4. Investments in Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests of up to 50.086various joint ventures with unrelated third pestthat are accounted for using the ec
method of accounting because we have the abiligxécise significant influence over their opergtamd financial policies.

The following table sets forth the summarized inesstatements of our unconsolidated affiliates:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 12,84 $ 2393 $ 2527¢ $ 47,45
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 6,23¢ 11,73¢ 12,43¢ 22,94¢
Depreciation and amortization 3,32¢ 6,227 6,817 12,37:
Impairments of real estate assets — — — 4,79(
Interest expense 2,301 4,68¢ 4,51: 9,42¢
Total expenses 11,86¢ 22,65t 23,76¢ 49,53¢
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties 98C 1,28( 1,51(C (2,08¢)
Gains on disposition of properties — 43 1,94¢ 67
Net income/(loss) $ 98C $ 132t $§ 345¢ $ (2,02)
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization $ 92 $§ 209 $ 195 $ 4,10i
Impairments of real estate assets $ — 3 — % — $ 1,02
Interest expense $ 764 $ 1,732 $ 1540 $ 3,48¢
Gains on disposition of properties $ — 3 1 $ 95t 3 431
Net income $ 491 % 571 $ 1,64¢ $ 57t
Our share of net income $ 491 $ 571 $ 1.64¢ $ 57¢
Adjustments for management and other fees 17€ 34z 34t 774
Impairment of investment in unconsolidated affdiat — — (1,359 —
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 667 % 91: § 636§ 1,34¢

Board of Trade Investment Company ("Board of Trade")

During the first quarter of 2014, Board of Tradédsan office property to an unrelated third party §ross proceeds of $8.3 milli@mc
recorded a gain of $1.9 millionAs our cost basis was different from the basflected at the entity level, we recorded a net immpani
charge on our investment of $0.4 million . Thisrgearepresented the other-th@mporary decline in the fair value below the cexgyvalue
of our investment. During the second quarter of2@Lirr 49.0% interest in Board of Trade was redeeimexchange for $4.7 million .
Highwoods KC Glenridge Office, LLC (“KC Glenridge”)

During the second quarter of 2014, KC Glenridgel @imaturity the remaining $14.9 millitialance on a secured mortgage loan wi
effective interest rate of 4.84% .
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of analated amortizatior

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Assets:
Deferred financing costs $ 19567 $ 17,36:
Less accumulated amortization (6,439 (5,204
13,13 12,15¢
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ above market lease and in-place lease acquoisélated
intangible assets) 300,88! 297,06¢
Less accumulated amortization (95,99¢) (87,01¢)
204,88¢ 210,05:
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 218,02: $ 222,21
Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensesd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 54,90 $ 55,32:
Less accumulated amortization (11,080 (8,47%)
$ 43,82 $ 46,84¢
The following table sets forth amortization of in¢gble assets and below market lease liabilities:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 79¢ % 94¢ $ 1,451 $ 1,897
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acquisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 10,05 $ 7,88 $ 19,97¢ $ 15,96:
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andesttevenues) $ 39¢ $ 34C $ 75C % 71€
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 1,112 $ 484 $ 2,230 $ 95C
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assg@n rental property and other expenses) $ 13¢ % 13¢  $ 27¢ % 27¢
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (1,500 $ (1,03) $ (3,029 $ (2,159
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lialities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédbilities:

Amortization of
Deferred Leasing

Costs and Amortization of Amortization of
Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition- Acquisition-
Related Acquisition- Related Related Below
Intangible Assets Amortization of Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
Amortization of (in Depreciation  Lease Incentives Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Deferred and (in Rental and (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Financing Costs Amortization) Other Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
July 1 through December 31, 2014 $ 1,55¢ $ 18,26¢ $ 68¢ $ 2,107 $ 277 $ (2,979
2015 3,087 34,83¢ 1,13¢ 3,61¢ 55z (5,71%
2016 2,82: 29,29¢ 934 2,81( G55 (5,427
2017 2,52¢ 25,37¢ 84: 2,26¢ 55z (5,164
2018 1,40¢ 21,09t 74¢ 1,42¢ G55 (5,016
Thereafter 1,732 49,50¢ 2,58( 3,76¢ 1,08¢ (19,519
$ 13,13 % 178,38t $ 6,92¢ $ 15,99¢ $ 357t % (43,82)
Weighted average remaining amortization ~ _
periods as of June 30, 2014 (in years) 4.8 6.2 8.2 6.€ 6.5 8.7

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages anttagayable:

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
Secured indebtedness $ 352,85 $ 488,66
Unsecured indebtedness 1,706,11! 1,467,63!

Total mortgages and notes payable $ 205897, $ 1,956,29

At June 30, 2014 our secured mortgage loans were collateralizedeby estate assets with an aggregate undeprediatddvalue of
652.4 million .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in January 2G8 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for twditinal sixmonth periods. The interest rate at our currerditratings is LIBOR plus 11
basis points and the annual facility fee is 20basints. There was $ 157.0 million and $ 181.0ioniloutstanding under our revolving cre
facility at June 30, 2014 and July 21, 2014 , retipely. At both June 30, 2014 and July 21, 209 ,had $ 0.1 milliorof outstanding lette
of credit, which reduces the availability on ouvalving credit facility. As a result, the unusedpaaity of our revolving credit facility
June 30, 2014 and July 21, 2014 was $ 317.9 midlimh$ 293.9 million , respectively.

During the second quarter of 2014, the OperatimgnBeship issued $300 million aggregate principabant of 3.20% Notes dukine 1£
2021 , less original issue discount of $3.1 milliohhese notes were priced at 98.983% for an éffegield of 3.363% Underwriting fee
and other expenses were incurred that aggregatéd@tion ; these costs were deferred and wilbb#ortized over the term of the notes.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

During the second quarter of 2014, we prepaid withzenalty the remaining $123.7 millitialance on a secured mortgage loan wit
effective interest rate of 3.11% that was originaltheduled to mature in July 2014 .

During the second quarter of 2014, we prepaid émeaining $7.2 milliorbalance on a secured mortgage loan with an efteatiteres
rate of 3.32% that was originally scheduled to m&ain August 2014 . We recorded less than $0.lionibf gain on debt extinguishme
related to this prepayment.

We are currently in compliance with financial comats and other requirements with respect to ousaatated debt.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

Our interest rate swaps have been designated aararizbing accounted for as cash flow hedges viidimges in fair value recordec
other comprehensive income each reporting periagin or loss was recognized related to hedgdeictdfeness or to amounts exclu
from effectiveness testing on our cash flow hedijging the six months ended June 30, 20We have no collateral requirements relate
our interest rate swaps.

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreheriss® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be resified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate Beiing the period from July 1, 2014 through JB80e 2015, we estimate thb3.4 millior
will be reclassified to interest expense.

The following table sets forth the gross fair vatdeur derivatives:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in prégaxpenses and other assets:
Interest rate swaps $ — % 301
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 2,74 $ 51C
The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gains/(losses) recognized in@CL on derivatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (2846 $ 6,31¢ $ (4250 $ 6,59¢
Amount of losses reclassified out of AOCL into coméctual interest expense (effective
portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 944 $ 80C $ 1872 $ 1,58¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

8. Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At June 30, 2014 , our noncontrolling interestscamsolidated affiliates relates to our joint vestyrartner's 50.0%nterest in offici

properties in Richmond, VA. Our joint venture partiis an unrelated third party.
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

The following table sets forth the Company's nonicgling interests in the Operating Partnership:

Six Months Ended

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatifaytnership $
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opiexg Partnership to fair value
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock
Redemptions of Common Units
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstshe Operating Partnership
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&ating Partnership

Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $

June 30,

2014 2013
106,480 $ 124,86¢
18,33} 9,64¢
(162) (2,857
(93 —
1,14( 1,82«
(2,497 (3,140
123,20¢ $ 130,35:

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from the @amg's noncontrolling interests

the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income available for common stockholders $ 22,70 $ 2752. $ 34831 $ 39,87
Increase in additional paid in capital from conians of Common Units
to Common Stock — 2,50( 162 2,851
Change from net income available for common stolddrs and transfers from noncontrolling
interests $ 22,708 $ 30,02 $ 34,998 $ 42,72
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument
The following summarizes the three levels of inghtst we use to measure fair value.
Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabtssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 asset is our investments in marketablaurities that we use to pay benefits under oarqualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our nogualified deferred compensation obligation. The @any's Level 1 noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership relate to the ownership gh@on Units by various individuals and entities otthen the Company.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssafuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relat
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 assets include the fair value of cartdiour mortgages and notes receivable and cesfainr interest rate swaps. Our Le
2 liabilities include the fair value of our mortgegand notes payable and the remainder of ouesiteste swaps.

The fair value of mortgages and notes receivabld mortgages and notes payable is estimated bynit@mie approach utilizit
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the pricevioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants. The fair value of interest rate swispdetermined using the market standard methogiaddgnetting the discounted future fix
cash receipts and the discounted expected varizddh payments. The variable cash payments of gtteade swaps are based on
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanakves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevfalues to account for potential nonperformance, tisk were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include (1) certain of our meges and notes receivable, which were estimatethdyncome approach utilizi
internal cash flow projections and market intenegés to estimate the price that would be paidniroalerly transaction between mal
participants, (2) our tax increment financing bowthich is not routinely traded but whose fair valsedetermined by the income appra
utilizing contractual cash flows and marletsed interest rates to estimate the projectedmgtiten value based on quoted bid/ask price
similar unrated municipal bonds, and (3) any resdate assets recorded at fair value on areounrring basis as a result of our quar
impairment analysis, which were valued using thiengeof definitive sales contracts or the sales amspn approach and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approgirte price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markmsed interest rates; and (3) a number of othemgsttons including demand for spe
competition for customers, changes in market reatals, costs of operation and expected ownergripgs.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth our assets and litds and the Company's noncontrolling interestshie Operating Partnership that
measured at fair value within the fair value hiehgr

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Assets or Significant Unobservable
Total Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs

Fair Value at June 30, 2014:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 10,14: $ — % 23¢ % 9,90t
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,86¢ 3,86¢ — —
Impaired real estate assets 4,927 — — 4,92
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 13,67: — — 13,67:

Total Assets $ 32,60¢ $ 3,86¢ $ 23¢ % 28,50(
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 123,20 $ 123,20 $ — 3 —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,152,500 $ —  $ 215250 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 2,74¢ — 2,744 —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,86¢ 3,86¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 22,46¢ — — 22,46¢

Total Liabilities $ 218158 $ 386¢ $ 2,15524' §$ 22,46¢
Fair Value at December 31, 2013:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 26,48 $ — % 17,02¢ $ 9,45¢
Interest rate swaps (in prepaid expenses and atisets) 301 — 301 —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,99¢ 3,99¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaiher assets) 13,40: — — 13,40:

Total Assets $ 44,188 3 3,99 $ 17,33 $ 22,85¢
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 106,48( $ 106,48( $ — $ —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,037,38 $ — $ 2,037,388 % =
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrygehses and other liabilities) 51C — 51C —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,99¢ 3,99¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 22,47¢ — — 22,47¢

Total Liabilities $ 2,064,360 $ 399 $ 2,037,890 $ 22,47¢

(1) Amounts recorded at historical cost on oanéblidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2014 arehiber 31, 2013 .
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaat falue on our Consolidated Bala
Sheets:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Asset:

Tax Increment Financing Bond:

Beginning balance $ 1356¢ $ 14,32 $ 13,40: $ 14,49
Principal repayment — — — (562)
Unrealized gains/(losses) (in AOCL) 10% (92) 27C 29¢

Ending balance $ 13,67 $ 1423: $ 13,67 $ 14,23

Liability:

Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Asss:

Beginning balance $ — 3 37t $ — 3 565
Unrecognized (gains)/losses (in general and adtratiige expenses) — 9 — (179

Ending balance $ —  $ 384 § —  $ 384

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandimgd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at J88e2014 was $0.8 milliobelow the outstanding principal due on the bondhéf discour
rate used to fair value this bond was 100 basistpdiigher or lower, the fair value of the bond Wdobave been $0.4 million lower &0.4
million higher, respectively, as of June 30, 201¥e intend to hold this bond and have concludediwe will not be required to sell this bc
before recovery of the bond principal. Paymentefprincipal and interest for the bond is guaraht®eus. We have recorded no credit lo
related to the bond during the three and six moettted June 30, 2014 and 20There is no legal right of offset with the liatyi| which we
report as a financing obligation, related to this increment financing bond.

The impaired real estate assets that were measutied second quarter of 2014 at fair value andragkto be Level 3 assets were va
based primarily on markétased inputs and our assumptions about the ube afsets, as observable inputs were not availabtiee absenc
of observable inputs, we estimate the fair valueeaf estate using unobservable data such as éstirdescount and capitalization rates.
also utilize local and national industry marketadstich as comparable sales, sales contracts aralsgigto assist us in our estimation of
value. Significant increases or decreases in aryatian inputs in isolation would result in a sificéntly lower or higher fair valt
measurement.

The following table sets forth quantitative inforioa about the unobservable input of our Level Sets which are recorded at fair ve
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Valuation Unobservable
Technique Input Rate
Assets:
Tax increment financing bond Income approach Discount rate 9.0%
Impaired real estate assets Income approach Capitalization rate 9.5%
Discount rate 10.0%
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10. ShareBased Payment

During the six months ended June 30, 2014 , the p2om granted 166,084tock options with an exercise price equal to tlusiog
market price of a share of Common Stock on the daggant. The fair value of each option is estiedabn the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, which resulted in @ighted average grant date fair value per shafe @B9 . During thesix months ende
June 30, 2014 , the Company also granted 87,3%@slo&time-based restricted stock and 67,010 stafreotal returrbased restricted sto
with weighted average grant date fair values paresbf $ 37.63 and $ 35.25 , respectively. We dmishardased compensation expens
$1.1 million and $1.3 million during the three miamtended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively$ & million and $ 4.7 milliomuring
the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 , cisgg. At June 30, 2014 , there was $5.5 milliointotal unrecognized shalmse:
compensation costs, which will be recognized owemghted average remaining contractual term ofy2dys.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components of O

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Tax increment financing bond:

Beginning balance $ 864 $ (1,508 $ (1,029 $ (1,899
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finanbiond 10t (91 27C 29¢

Ending balance (759 (1,599 (759 (1,599

Cash flow hedges:

Beginning balance (2,05¢) (9,662 (1,582 (10,730
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (2,846 6,31¢ (4,250 6,59¢
Amortization of cash flow hedges 944 80C 1,872 1,58¢

Ending balance (3,960 (2,547 (3,960 (2,549

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (4719 $ (414) $ (4719 $ (414)

(1) Amounts reclassified out of AOCL into comigal interest expense.

12. Real Estate and Other Assets Held For Sale and Disatinued Operations

The following table sets forth the major classeassfets of our real estate and other assets,ateétidn sale:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Assets:

Land $ 11,48t $ —
Buildings and tenant improvements 81,93¢ —
Land held for development 2,597 —
Less-accumulated depreciation (34,28)) —
Net real estate assets 61,74( —
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net 3,87¢ —
Deferred leasing costs, net 1,82¢ —
Prepaid expenses and other assets 721 —

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 68,15¢ $ —




The following table sets forth our operations thadre
standard update discussed in Note 1:

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from discontinued operations
Impairments of real estate assets
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Total discontinued operations

classified as discontinued operations priotht® adoption of the account

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
$ — $ 6,262 $ = 13,26(
— 2,41¢ — 4,86¢
— 1,851 — 4,05t
— 4,267 — 8,921
— 1,99¢ — 4,33¢
— (1,06€) — (2,199
— 13,16: 384 14,40°
$ — $ 1409 $ 384 16,55:

As of June 30, 2014 , real estate and other agsetsheld for sale consisted of 11 office progsriin Richmond, VA and fiveffice
properties and a land parcel in Raleigh, NC. Ndhnthese properties were classified as discontimmatations during theix months ende
June 30, 2014 . As of December 31, 2013 , there werreal estate and other assets, net, heldléor sa
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13. Earnings Per Share and Per Un|

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share of the Company:

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 2451 $ 1548 $ 37,700 $ 26,78
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim the Operating Partnership from continuingrapens (742) (640 (1,129% (1,119
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (43¢) (187) (867) (390
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,259 (1,259
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 22,70¢ 14,03: 34,46 24,03:
Income from discontinued operations — 14,09: 384 16,55
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations — (60%) (12) (712)
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders — 13,48¢ 37z 15,84(
Net income available for common stockholders $ 22,708 $ 2752 $ 3483 $ 39,87
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shares 90,25¢ 82,81: 90,11: 81,92¢
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 028 % 0.17 $ 03¢ $ 0.3C
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders — 0.1€ 0.01 0.1¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 028 $ 03t % 03¢ $ 0.4¢
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 2451 $ 1548 $ 37,700 $ 26,78
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing operas (43¢) (187 (867) (390
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,259 (1,259
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attribute
to noncontrolling interests in the Operating Pathip 23,44° 14,67 35,58¢ 25,14:
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders — 14,09: 384 16,55:
Net income available for common stockholders bef@te(income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests in the Operating Partnership 23447 $ 28,76¢ $ 3597 $ 41,69
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shares 90,25« 82,81 90,11: 81,92¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 121 132 12: 12C
Noncontrolling interests Common Units 2,937 3,68¢ 2,93¢ 3,700
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed
conversiongl) (2) 93,31 86,63: 93,17: 85,75:
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 028 % 0.17 $ 03¢ $ 0.3C
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders — 0.1¢ 0.01 0.1¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 02t  $ 03: $ 03¢ $ 0.4¢
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13. Earnings Per Share and Per Unit Continued

(1) There were 0.3 million options outstanding durihg three months ended June 30, 2013 and 0.2 méhoin0.3 millionoptions outstanding during t
six months ended June 30, 2014 and 20f6%pectively, that were not included in the cotapon of diluted earnings per share because tipadmo
including such options would be anti-dilutive . T&@vere no such options outstanding during thesthrenths ended June 30, 2014.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock where divitseon such restricted stock are riorfeitable

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per unit of the Opera#@agnership:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 2451 $ 1549 $ 37,700 $ 26,73
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (43¢) (187 (861) (390
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627) (1,25¢) (2,259
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 23,44° 14,67¢ 35,58¢ 25,09:
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders = 14,09: 384 16,55:
Net income available for common unitholders $ 2344 $ 28766 $ 35970 $ 41,64f
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units 92,78. 86,09( 92,64( 85,22!
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 028 % 017 $ 03¢t $ 0.3C
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders = 0.1¢€ 0.01 0.1¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 028  $ 03z $ 03¢ $ 0.4¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 2451: $ 1549 $ 37,700 $ 26,73
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (43¢) (187 (86)) (390
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627) (1,259 (1,259
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 23,44° 14,67¢ 35,58¢ 25,09:
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders — 14,09: 384 16,55:
Net income available for common unitholders $ 2344 $ 28,766 $ 35977 $ 41,64
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units 92,78. 86,09( 92,64( 85,22!
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 121 13z 12¢ 12C
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uratjusted weighted average units and assumed
conversiongl) (2) 92,90 86,22 92,76: 85,34
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 028 $ 0.17 $ 03¢t $ 0.3C
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders — 0.1¢€ 0.01 0.1¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 02t % 03 % 03¢ $ 0.4¢

(1) There were 0.3 million options outstandingidgrthe three months ended June 30, 2013 and Olidnrand 0.3 millionoptions outstanding during t
six months ended June 30, 2014 and 20d&spectively, that were not included in the cotapan of diluted earnings per unit because theaichp
including such options would be anti-dilutiv&here were no such options outstanding duringhteetmonths ended June 30, 2014.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock whévadnds on such restricted stock are rfiorfeitable



27




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

14. Segment Informatior

The following tables summarize the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric used by our chief operating decision makhbictvis defined as rental and other revenues kstalrproperty and other expenses
each of our reportable segments:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Rental and Other Revenues:

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 23627 $ 17,93¢ $ 46,600 $ 35,10(
Greenville, SC 767 85t 1,60¢ 1,70¢
Kansas City, MO 4,08¢ 4,03 8,18: 8,002
Memphis, TN 10,05¢ 9,65: 19,89( 19,03t
Nashville, TN 20,18: 14,18t¢ 39,78 28,25¢
Orlando, FL 9,14¢ 2,23( 18,06¢ 4,451
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,58( 6,51¢ 13,03( 12,89:
Pittsburgh, PA 14,01« 13,95: 27,77 27,63¢
Raleigh, NC 22,53¢ 21,71¢ 44,02¢ 42,37¢
Richmond, VA 12,02( 11,85¢ 23,76 23,62¢
Tampa, FL 17,12¢ 17,39: 33,75¢ 34,82¢
Total Office Segment 140,14¢ 120,32¢ 276,48¢ 237,91

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 204 211 40¢ 414
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,00¢ 3,117 5,69¢ 6,23¢
Total Industrial Segment 3,21C 3,32¢ 6,10z 6,652

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,36¢ 8,96: 18,58¢ 18,42¢
Total Retail Segment 9,36¢ 8,96: 18,58 18,42¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 152,72 $ 132,61¢ $ 301,17t $ 262,99!
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14. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net Operating Income:
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 1432 $ 11,17 $ 28,01¢ $ 22,06
Greenville, SC 39C 47t 86E 971
Kansas City, MO 2,69¢ 2,63¢ 5,30z 5,19¢
Memphis, TN 5,78¢ 5,29¢ 11,39¢ 10,92
Nashville, TN 13,99¢ 10,03( 27,15: 19,71¢
Orlando, FL 5,34¢ 1,07C 10,72: 2,14¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 4,24¢ 4,25¢ 8,24 8,35¢
Pittsburgh, PA 7,98¢ 7,902 15,18: 15,32(
Raleigh, NC 16,32¢ 15,67¢ 31,35¢ 30,29¢
Richmond, VA 8,26¢ 8,24 15,94: 16,35t
Tampa, FL 10,03: 10,47: 20,06¢ 21,69:
Total Office Segment 89,40: 77,22¢ 174,24¢ 153,04:
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 122 12C 244 23¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,161 2,36¢ 4,02¢ 4,60¢
Total Industrial Segment 2,28: 2,48¢ 4,27: 4,84¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,76¢ 5,607 11,02¢ 11,22¢
Total Retail Segment 5,76¢ 5,607 11,02¢ 11,22¢
Corporate and other (2 (16) (40) (34)
Total Net Operating Income 97,447 85,30: 189,51( 169,08
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationshefore disposition of investment properties
and activity in unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (50,449 (40,629 (98,609 (80,719
Impairments of real estate assets (58¢) — (588 —
General and administrative expenses (8,739 (8,397 (19,44 (18,979
Interest expense (21,219 (23,28¢) (42,579 (47,159
Other income 1,42¢ 1,615 2,82 3,23¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of investment properties and activity in
unconsolidated affiliates $ 17,89¢ $ 14,61 $ 31,11¢ $ 2547
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15. Subsequent Event

On July 1, 2014, we received $4.7 million in casltonnection with the second quarter redemptioounfformer investment in Board
Trade.

On July 1, 2014, we prepaid the remaining $36.%anilbalance on a secured mortgage loan with acg¥le interest rate of 3.34% t
was originally scheduled to mature in April 2015e\&kpect to record $0.3 million of loss on debtreydishment related to this prepayment.

On July 29, 2014, we sold five office propertiesl anland parcel in a single transaction in RaleN@, for a sale price of $58.7 milli
and expect to record a gain on disposition of prypef $11.7 million.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated office REIT tloatns, develops, acquires, leases and manages fespgaimarily in the best busine
districts (BBDs) of Atlanta, Kansas City, Memphi¢éashville, Orlando, Pittsburgh, Raleigh, Richmomdmpa and the Triad. The Comp
conducts its activities through the Operating Raghip. The Operating Partnership is managed byCtrapany, its sole general parti
Additional information about us can be found on website atvww.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of thisagterly
Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpédar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section. You can identify forward-loak statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue’dr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isumggested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achievafthen considering such forwaldeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofdhg
important factors that could cause our actual tedaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

* we may not be able to lease or release secondajmmespace, defined as previously occupied sgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

e we may not be able to lease our newly constructéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agioailly anticipatec

e« we may not be able to complete development, aderisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &Rrig markets could result in an excessive supplpftite properties relative
customer demand,;

e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coullctase our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

* we may not be able to meet our liquidity requireteesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or repay or refinance outstarmdiebt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also vevhe other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 8063 Annual Report on Form }-Given these uncertainties, you should not plagut

reliance on forward-looking statements. We underta@ obligation to publicly release the resultsany revisions to these forwaloeking
statements to reflect any future events or circamtsts or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipateshts.
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Executive Summary

Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
» owning highgquality, differentiated real estate assets in #eikfill business districts in our core mark

» improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset mareagenost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefjlli business districts that improve the overalktjty of our portfolio and gener:
attractive returns over the long term for our stoulkers;

» disposing of properties no longer considered todre assets primarily due to location, age, qualitgt overall strategic fit; a

* maintaining a conservative and flexible balanceeskdth ample liquidity to meet our funding needsl growth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktaind retail properties, our operating resuéépehd heavily on successfully leas
and operating our office properties. Economic gtoamd employment levels in our core markets arevdahaontinue to be important factc
in predicting our future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otbeemues are average occupancy, rental rates,emmstary income, new developme
placed in service, acquisitions and dispositiongerAge occupancy generally increases during timhé@sgroving economic growth, as ¢
ability to lease space outpaces vacancies that apmn the expirations of existing leases. Averaggupancy generally declines during tii
of slower economic growth, when new vacancies temdutpace our ability to lease space. Asset aitmuis, dispositions and ne
developments placed in service directly impact umtal revenues and could impact our average occypaepending upon the occupa
rate of the properties that are acquired, soldaxeaul in service. A further indicator of the predhility of future revenues is the expected I
expirations of our portfolio. As a result, in adaiit to seeking to increase our average occupandga®ng current vacant space, we also
concentrate our leasing efforts on renewing oustag leases prior to expiration. For more inforioratregarding our lease expirations,
"Properties - Lease Expirations" in our 2013 AnniRaport. Our occupancy increased from 89.9% at Dbee 31, 2013 to 90.8% atine 3(
2014. In light of leases signed to date and our forechéeasing activity for the remainder of 2014, @ect average occupancy tc
approximately 90.9% for the remainder of 2014 aedryend 2014 occupancy to be 91.8% to 92.5%.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagepancy proportionally depends upon whether rentensigned new and rene
leases are higher or lower than the rents unddrieggeases. Annualized rental revenues from ségmneration leases expiring during
particular year are generally less than 15% oftotal annual rental revenues. The following taldés orth information regarding secc
generation leases signed during the second quaEr014(we define second generation leases as leasesm@ittcustomers and renewal:
existing customers in space that has been preyiawstupied under our ownership and leases witheaspp vacant space in acqui
buildings):

Office Industrial Retail
New Renewal New Renewal New Renewal
Leased space (in rentable square feet) 776,03t 678,43t 22,13( 47,11: — 64,64+
Average term (in years - rentable square foot wteid)h 9.3 5.¢ 4.7 2.8 — 3.C
Base rents (per rentable square font) $ 24.1¢ $ 225: % 6.0¢ $ 7.6 $ — 3 18.8¢
Rent concessions (per rentable square fapt) (0.95) (0.49) (0.29) — — —
GAAP rents (per rentable square fo@j) $ 23.2¢ $ 221C % 58C % 7.6¢ $ — 8 18.8¢
Tenant improvements (per rentable square fapt) $ 36z $ 126 % 08¢ $ 0.1t % — % 0.6¢
Leasing commissions (per rentable square fapt) $ 097 § 05: % 011 % 0.07 $ — $ 0.0¢

(1) Weighted average per rentable square foot on amahbasis over the lease te
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Compared to previous leases in the same spacesalacombined GAAP rents for new and renewal leasgsed in the seconguarte
were $22.71 per rentable square foot, or 14.2%ehmiglfior office leases, $7.06 per rentable squaog, or 1.9% higher for industrial lease
and $18.84 per rentable square foot, or 19.4% higfee retail leases.

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cretifay customer base. We have an internal guidelimereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically regikwith the Company's Board of Directors. No costo currently accounts for more ti
2% of our revenues other than the Federal Goverhmesich accounted for less than #four revenues on an annualized basis,
June 30, 2014 .

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general ahdinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesiatdode impairments of real estate assets. Rentglgoty expenses are expenses asso!
with our ownership and operation of rental progartand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
janitorial services and utilities, and expenses ttanot vary based on occupancy, such as propexss and insurance. Depreciation
amortization is a noeash expense associated with the ownership oprepkrty and generally remains relatively consiséaith year, unle
we buy, place in service or sell assets, since epgatiate our properties and related building @ndrt improvement assets on a straliyjia-
basis over fixed lives. General and administraéi¥penses consist primarily of management and erapleglaries and other personnel ¢
corporate overhead and short and long-term incemiwnpensation.

We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibddahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. We anticipate comnmgnap to $150 million of new development in 2018uch projects would likely not
placed in service until 2015 or beyond. We alsacgrdte acquiring up to $300 million of new propestand selling up to $175 millioof
non-core buildings in 2014We generally seek to acquire and develop asBatsimhprove the average quality of our overall fudic anc
deliver consistent and sustainable value for oacldtolders over the longerm. Whether or not an asset acquisition or neweld@men
results in higher per share net income or fundmfaperations ("FFO") in any given peria@pends upon a number of factors, inclu
whether the net operating income for any such peexceeds the actual cost of capital used to fimahe acquisition. Forwardoking
information regarding 2014perating performance contained below under "Resoiit Operations” excludes the impact of any po#d
acquisitions or dispositions.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues were $20.1 million ,%2% , higher in the second quarter of 2014 as emetpto 201rimarily due to 201
acquisitions and development properties placedemvice, which accounted for $19.5 million of thecnease, and higher same prop
revenues of $0.7 million. Same property rental etiér revenues were higher primarily due to higha@rage GAAP rents per rentable sq
foot and a bankruptcy settlement, partly offseldwer termination fees in 2014 and a decrease éna@e occupancy to 90.3% in thecon
quarter of 2014 from 90.7% in the second quarte2Gif3 . We expect rental and other revenues foreahminder of 20140 increase ow
2013 primarily due to the full year contribution of adsjtions closed and development properties planeskrvice in 2013 and higher se
property revenues resulting from increasing avemagripancy, higher cost recovery income and higlverage GAAP rents per rente
square foot.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $8.0 mijlar 16.8% , higher in the second quarter of 2844ompared to 20¥8imarily due
to 2013 acquisitions and development propertiesgalan service, which accounted for $7.3 milliortlod increase, and higher same proy
operating expenses of $1.0 million. Same propepgrating expenses were higher primarily due to dvigltilities, contract services &
repairs and maintenance in 2014. We expect renbalepty and other expenses for the remainder o 20increase over 2048imarily due
to the full year contribution of acquisitions cldsand development properties placed in servicdditB2We expect same property opere
expenses for the remainder of 2014 to remain veltiunchanged to 201@rimarily due to higher property taxes, contraatvees an
utilities, offset by lower repairs and maintenance.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neggress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental

other revenues, was lower at 63.8% for the secoadtey of 2014 as compared to 64.3% for the seqoadter of 2013 We expect operatil
margin for the remainder of 2014 to slightly ingeaver 2013 .
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Depreciation and amortization was $9.8 million ,2dr2% , higher in the second quarter of 2014 aspewed to 201®rimarily due t
2013 acquisitions and development properties platsdrvice. We expect depreciation and amortinaio the remainder of 2014 increas
over 2013 primarily due to the full year contrilmutiof acquisitions closed and development propepiaced in service in 2013.

We recorded impairments of real estate assets .6f iB@lion in the second quarter of 2014 on ana&fproperty in Greensboro, N
which resulted from a change in the assumed timinfyture disposition and leasing assumptions. rded no such impairments in
second quarter of 2013.

General and administrative expenses were $0.3omilior 4.0% , higher in the second quarter of 284 4ompared to 2038imarily due
to higher incentive compensation and compeatige base salaries, offset by lower acquisitiontso#/e expect general and administre
expenses for the remainder of 2014 to decrease2®&8primarily due to lower incentive compensation anduasition costs, partly offset
higher company-wide base salaries.

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $2.1 million , or 8.9% , lowethe second quarter of 2014 as compared to Poibarily due to lower avera
interest rates and higher capitalized interesttypaffset by higher average debt balances. We &xjperest expense for the remainde
2014 to decrease slightly over 20d@marily due to higher capitalized interest andido average interest rates, partly offset by highvarag
debt balances and higher financing obligation ageexpense.
Other Income

Other income was $0.2 million , or 11.7% , lowettlie second quarter of 2014 as compared to Poibdarily due to the repayments
the first quarter of 2014 of $16.5 million of maatges receivable, which consisted of seller finamginovided in connection with 20
disposition transactions. We expect other incomdHte remainder of 2014 to decrease over 253 result of the repayments of mortg,
receivable in the first quarter of 2014.

Gains on Disposition of Property

Gains on disposition of property were $6.0 millisigher in the second quarter of 2014 as compar&fi@due to the sale of two la
parcels in Atlanta, GA in 2014.

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates v&s2 million , or 26.9% , lower in the second demiof 2014 as compared &D1:
primarily due to the acquisitions of certain joirgnture interests and assets in the third quaft@0®3. We expect equity in earnings
unconsolidated affiliates for the remainder of 2@d4emain consistent with 201Rie to impairments of real estate assets record@@1:
offset by the reduction of our overall joint verglinvestments in 2013 and 2014.
I mpairments of Real Estate Assetsin Discontinued Operations

We recorded impairments of real estate assets df §illion on four properties in a single officerkan WinstonSalem, NC in th
second quarter of 2013. These impairments wereta@echange in the assumed timing of future digjpps and leasing assumptions.
recorded no such impairments in the second quaft2014.

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatiese $13.2 million lower in the second quarte2014 as compared to 20i8e to th
building disposition activity in the second quaé€2013. No such activity occurred in the secondrter of 2014.

Earnings Per Common Share - Diluted

Diluted earnings per share was $0.08 , or 24.28et in the second quarter of 2014 as compare@18 @ue to a decrease in net incc
for the reasons discussed above and an incredise weighted average Common Shares outstandingZ@dri@ and 2014 issuances.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues were $38.2 million ,405% , higher in the first six months of 2014 ampared to 2018rimarily due to 201
acquisitions and development properties placedemice, which accounted for $39.8 million of thernsase, partly offset by lower sa
property revenues of $1.0 million. Same propertytaeand other revenues were lower primarily due ecreasen average occupancy
89.9% in the first six months of 2014 from 90.9%the first six months of 2018nd lower termination fees in 2014, partly offsgtHighe!
cost recovery income and a bankruptcy settleme®irt.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $17.8omilior 18.9% , higher in the first six months 6fl2 as compared to 20B8imarily
due to 2013 acquisitions and development propepi@sed in service, which accounted for $15.1 orillof the increase, and higher si
property operating expenses of $3.5 million. Sanup@rty operating expenses were higher primarily @uhigher utilities and snow remo

costs as a result of harsher than normal winteditions and repairs and maintenance.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other negeness rental property and other expenses ergressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 62.9% for the fipstsdnths of 2014 as compared to 64.3% for the $isstnonths of 2013 .

Depreciation and amortization was $17.9 milliorr 28.2% , higher in the first six months of 2014casnpared to 201frimarily due t
2013 acquisitions and development properties placedrvice.

We recorded impairments of real estate assets .6f iB@lion in the second quarter of 2014 on ana&fproperty in Greenshoro, N
which resulted from a change in the assumed timinfyture disposition and leasing assumptions. rded no such impairments in
first six months of 2013.

General and administrative expenses were $0.50mijlor 2.5% , higher in the first six months ofl2Gas compared to 20B8imarily due
to higher incentive compensation and company-waketsalaries, offset by lower acquisition costs.

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $4.6 million , or 9.7% , lowethe first six months of 2014 as compared to®ptmarily due to lower avera
interest rates, higher capitalized interest anceloimancing obligation interest expense, parthgeif by higher average debt balances.

Other Income

Other income was $0.4 million , or 12.6% , lowethe first six months of 2014 as compared to 20i@arily due to the repayments
the first quarter of 2014 of $16.5 million of maatges receivable, which consisted of seller finamginovided in connection with 20
disposition transactions. This decrease in otheorite was partly offset by a loss on debt extinguisht in the first quarter of 2013.

Gains on Disposition of Property

Gains on disposition of property were $6.0 millisigher in the first six months of 2014 as compamed013due to the sale of two la
parcels in Atlanta, GA in the second quarter of£201

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates v 57 million , or 52.7% , lower in the first sixamths of 2014 as compared 201z
primarily due to a net impairment of our investmenBoard of Trade Investment Company in the fipsarter of 2014 and the acquisition:

certain joint venture interests and assets intird fjuarter of 2013. Partly offsetting these intpagas our share of impairments of real e
assets in a joint venture in the first quarter @2
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I mpairments of Real Estate Assets in Discontinued Operations

We recorded impairments of real estate assets.afrfilllion on seven industrial properties in AtlanGA in the first quarter of 2013 ¢
$1.1 million on four properties in a single offipark in WinstonSalem, NC in the second quarter of 2013. Theseimpats were due to
change in the assumed timing of future dispositenms leasing assumptions. We recorded no such imeats in the first six months of 201
Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatiwese $14.0 million lower in the first six months2014 as compared to 20#i8e to ni
building disposition activity in 2014 and the reod®n of a deferred gain in 2014 on a 2010 disfimsitransaction that was accounted
using the installment method.
Earnings Per Common Share - Diluted

Diluted earnings per common share was $0.10 , @1920 lower in the first six months of 2014 as camga to 2013lue to a decrease

net income for the reasons discussed above anthcaease in the weighted average Common Sharesaodisyy from 2013 and 20
issuances.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexiéance sheet with access to multiple sourcesbf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers d four operating expenses, recur
capital expenditures and distributions. To fundpanty acquisitions, development activity or builglinenovations and repay debt u
maturity, we may use current cash balances, ssditgsobtain new debt and/or issue equity. Our deherally consists of unsecured (
securities, unsecured bank term loans, mortgageashkebborrowings under our unsecured revolvingitfedility.

Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢
forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bausands):

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2014 2013 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 11453 $ 116,92t $ (2,399
Net Cash (Used In) Investing Activities (133,11 (240,68)) 107,57:
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 27,09: 120,09¢ (93,009
Total Cash Flows $ 851t $ (3660 $ 12,17¢

In calculating net cash related to operating aibtisj depreciation and amortization, which are oash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagqubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otirim@me, as discussed more fully above under “Resaf Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlates to capitalized costs incurred for leasing major building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitiéll generally exceed cash provided by investtjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidmstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadlfates to distributions, incurrence and repayneémtebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and edeStock. As discussed previously, we use afsigmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdbénoutstanding balances of debt during a perigetags generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tue@ activity. We generally use our revolving ctefdicility for daily working capite
purposes, which means that during any given peiliodyrder to minimize interest expense, we may mcaignificant repayments a
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

The decrease in net cash provided by operatingitesi in the first six months of 2014 as compat@@013was primarily due to high
cash paid for operating expenses in 2014, parfgebby higher net cash from the operations of @riigs acquired in 2013. We expect
cash provided by operating activities for the rerdar of 2014 to be higher as compared to 2013 dube full year impact of properti
acquired in 2013 and higher cash flows from leaggsed in 2013 and prior years as free rent perogae.

The decrease in net cash used in investing aeviti the first six months of 2014 as compared@b32vas primarily due to low:
acquisition activity and higher repayments of maggs and notes receivable in 2014, partly offsehigher development activity, higt
expenditures on tenant improvements and lower retegds from dispositions of real estate asse0i. We expect net cash use
investing activities for the remainder of 2014 ® lbwer as compared to 2013 due to our plans taiec&100 million to $300 million «
office buildings and commence development of $7Bionito $150 million of office buildings. Additically, as of June 30, 2014we haw:
approximately $100 million left to fund of our pieusly-announced development activity. We expect thess o$ecash for investir
activities will be partly offset by $150 million ®175 million of non-core dispositions.
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The decrease in net cash provided by financingities in the first six months of 2014 as compat@@013was primarily due to high
proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock in 2848 higher aggregate dividends on Common StockOi¥ Zdue to higher shal
outstanding, partly offset by higher net debt bairngs in 2014. Assuming the net effect of our astjigin, disposition, development and j¢
venture activity in the remainder of 2014 resuit@n increase in our assets, we would expect oulisig debt balances to increase. Howe
because we plan to continue to maintain a flexdolé conservative balance sheet with mortgages ated payable and outstanding prefe
stock representing around 40% to 45% of the undégesl book value of our assets, we would also expigher outstanding balances
Common Stock in such event.

Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjzitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 2,058,97. $ 1,956,29
Financing obligations $ 24,67. $ 26,66¢
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 90,36: 89,92
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 2,937 2,94¢
Per share stock price at period end $ 4198 % 36.17
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 3,913,89: $ 3,358,92
Total capitalization $ 602661 $ 537096

At June 30, 2014 , our mortgages and notes payaideoutstanding preferred stock represented 34b6&ur total capitalization ai
42.4% of the undepreciated book value of our assets

Our mortgages and notes payable as of June 30,@0Bisted of $352.9 millioaf secured indebtedness with a weighted averagees
rate of 5.67% and $1,706.1 million of unsecurecebtddness with a weighted average interest ra#e0dP6. The secured indebtedness
collateralized by real estate assets with an aggeagndepreciated book value of $652.4 million .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofréends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertse Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingdiréacility, which had $ 293.9 millioof
availability at July 21, 2014 . Our shderm liquidity requirements primarily consist oferating expenses, interest and principal amortg
on our debt, distributions and capital expenditunesluding building improvement costs, tenant ioy@ment costs and lease commissi
Building improvements are capital costs to maintamnenhance existing buildings not typically rethted a specific customer. Ten
improvements are the costs required to customiaeesfor the specific needs of customers. We atieiphat our available cash and ¢
equivalents and cash provided by operating aatjtiogether with cash available from borrowingdasrour revolving credit facility, will k
adequate to meet our short-term liquidity requiretae

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving credit facility, term loans and other ansred debt), funding of existing and new builditeyelopment or land infrastructure proje
and funding acquisitions of buildings and developmiand. Our expected future capital expendituiesstarted and/or committed n
development projects were approximately $100 mmlié&d June 30, 2014Additionally, we may, from time to time, retirerae or all of oL
remaining outstanding Preferred Stock and/or urrselcdebt securities through redemptions, open madprchases, privately negotic
acquisitions or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of;

» cash flow from operating activitie

» bank term loans and borrowings under our revolgirgglit facility;

» the issuance of unsecured d
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» theissuance of secured di
» the issuance of equity securities by the Comparth@Operating Partnership;
» the disposition of norere asset

Disposition Activity

During the second quarter of 2014, we sold two Ipactels in Atlanta, GA in separate transactiomsafo aggregate sale price $8.%
million and recorded aggregate gains on disposiifgoroperty of $5.9 million .

On July 29, 2014, we sold five office propertiesl anland parcel in a single transaction in RaleN@, for a sale price of $58.7 milli
and expect to record a gain on disposition of prypef $11.7 million.

Financing Activity

During the first quarter of 2014, we entered inEparate sales agreements with each of Merrill Lyritierce, Fenner & Smi
Incorporated, Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporate®&I Capital Markets, a division of BB&T Securitiel.C, Capital One Securities, In
Comerica Securities, Inc., Jefferies LLC, Mitsubiti-J Securities (USA), Inc., Morgan Stanley & Qd.C, Piper Jaffray & Co., RB
Capital Markets, LLC and Wells Fargo SecuritiesQ.1During the second quarter of 2014 , the Compssiyed 50,293hares of Commic
Stock at an average gross sales price of $38.38haee and received net proceeds, after sales awioms, of $1.9 million We paid less th:
$0.1 million in sales commissions to Piper Jaf@ago. during the second quarter of 2014 .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in January 2G8 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for twditdnal six month periods. The interest rate at@urent credit ratings is LIBOR plus 1
basis points and the annual facility fee is 20 $@sints. The interest rate and facility fee arseblaon the higher of the publicly annour
ratings from Moody's Investors Service or StandaréPoor's Ratings Services. We use our revolvinglicréacility for working capite
purposes and for the shaetrm funding of our development and acquisitionvégtand, in certain instances, the repaymenttbéodebt. Th
continued ability to borrow under the revolving ditefacility allows us to quickly capitalize on ategic opportunities at shdgrm interes
rates. There was $ 157.0 million and $ 181.0 mmllmutstanding under our revolving credit facility June 30, 2014 and July 21, 2014
respectively. At both June 30, 2014 and July 21.420we had $ 0.1 millionf outstanding letters of credit, which reducesadhailability or
our revolving credit facility. As a result, the wad capacity of our revolving credit facility ané&u30, 2014 and July 21, 2014 wa81¥%.¢
million and $ 293.9 million , respectively.

During the second quarter of 2014, the OperatimgnBeship issued $300 million aggregate principabant of 3.20% Notes due June
2021, less original issue discount of $3.1 millidhese notes were priced at 98.983% for an effegtield of 3.363%. Underwriting fees ¢
other expenses were incurred that aggregated $flidmnthese costs were deferred and will be amed over the term of the notes.

During the second quarter of 2014, we prepaid withgenalty the remaining $123.7 million balanceaosecured mortgage loan with
effective interest rate of 3.11% that was origiynaltheduled to mature in July 2014.

During the second quarter of 2014, we prepaid ¢meaining $7.2 million balance on a secured mortdage with an effective intere
rate of 3.32% that was originally scheduled to mato August 2014.

On July 1, 2014, we prepaid the remaining $36.%anilbalance on a secured mortgage loan with aece¥fe interest rate of 3.34% t
was originally scheduled to mature in April 2015.

We regularly evaluate the financial condition of financial institutions that participate in ouedit facilities and as counterparties ur
interest rate swap agreements using publicly availanformation. Based on this review, we currergipect these financial institutions
perform their obligations under our existing fa@$ and swap agreements.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with financial cogats and other requirements with respect to ousadatated debt. Although we exp
to remain in compliance with these covenants atidsor at least the next year, depending uporfaiure operating

39




Table of Contents

performance, property and financing transactiond general economic conditions, we cannot assuretlyatuwe will continue to be
compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating cowsiaand various financ
requirements. Upon an event of default on the raemglcredit facility, the lenders having at leadt®% of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriogs then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergadffect our ability to fund our operations.

As of June 30, 2014 , the Operating Partnershigh@following unsecured notes outstanding ($ outtands):

Carrying Stated Interest Effective Interest

Face Amount Amount Rate Rate
Notes due March 2017 $ 379,68! $ 379,36 5.85(% 5.88(%
Notes due April 2018 $ 200,000 $ 200,00( 7.50(% 7.50(%
Notes due June 2021 $ 300,00 $ 296,99: 3.20(% 3.36%%
Notes due January 2023 $ 250,000 $ 247,75! 3.62%% 3.75%

The indenture that governs these outstanding metgsres us to comply with customary operating cewves and various financial rati
The trustee or the holders of at least 25i@%rincipal amount of either series of bonds ceceterate the principal amount of such series
written notice of a default that remains uncuredra60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abititypay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otmvenants that restrict our ability to take agsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the second quarter of 2014, our KC Glenriglget venture paid at maturity the remaining $1flion balance on a secui
mortgage loan with an effective interest rate 8#46.

During the second quarter of 2014, our 49.0% istene Board of Trade Investment Company was reddeimesxchange fof4.7
million . On July 1, 2014, we received the $4.7limil in cash in connection with this redemption.

Critical Accounting Estimates
There were no changes made by management to tlualcsiccounting policies in the six months endede]30, 2014 For a descriptic

of our critical accounting estimates, see “ManagaraeDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditamnd Results of Operation<Critical
Accounting Estimates” in our 2013 Annual Reportrmmm 10-K.
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Non-GAAP Information

The Company believes that FFO, FFO available fonroon stockholders and FFO available for commonks$tolders per share ¢
beneficial to management and investors and areriapoindicators of the performance of any equiiR Because these FFO calculati
exclude such factors as depreciation, amortizadimh impairments of real estate assets and gailosses from sales of operating real e:
assets, which can vary among owners of identic#tasn similar conditions based on historical @@siounting and useful life estimates,
facilitate comparisons of operating performancewleen periods and between other REITs. Managemedigvege that historical cc
accounting for real estate assets in accordande ®#AP implicitly assumes that the value of reahts assets diminishes predictably «
time. Since real estate values have historicadigrrior fallen with market conditions, many indusiryestors and analysts have considere
presentation of operating results for real estatpanies that use historical cost accounting tinbefficient on a standlone basis. As
result, management believes that the use of FFQ, &Failable for common stockholders and FFO avklér common stockholders
share, together with the required GAAP presentatipnovides a more complete understanding of theg@my's performance relative to
competitors and a more informed and appropriates lmeswhich to make decisions involving operatifigancing and investing activities.

FFO, FFO available for common stockholders and BN&ilable for common stockholders per share are@®&AP financial measur
and therefore do not represent net income or roenie per share as defined by GAAP. Net income ahdncome per share as definec
GAAP are the most relevant measures in determitingCompany's operating performance because th&@arteasures include adjustme
that investors may deem subjective, such as aduofio§g expenses such as depreciation, amortizatidnimpairments. Furthermore, F
available for common stockholders per share doéslepict the amount that accrues directly to tleldtolders' benefit. Accordingly, FF
FFO available for common stockholders and FFO alskel for common stockholders per share should negeronsidered as alternative
net income, net income available for common stoldérs or net income available for common stockhaldeer share as indicators of
Company's operating performance.

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WO as defined by the National Association of IRestate Investment Trus
which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
* Less net income attributable to noncontrolling iests in consolidated affiliat
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigterating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties
excluding items that are classified as extraordiitems under GAAP;

e Plus or minus our share of adjustments, includirepreciation and amortization of depreciable opegatproperties, fc
unconsolidated partnerships and joint venturesefiect funds from operations on the same basig); a

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and @imadion and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated afféiatrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company includes net incatteébutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@gting Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard ingustactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.
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The following table sets forth the Company's FFBQFavailable for common stockholders and FFO abkiléor common stockholde
per share ($ in thousands, except per share amounts

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 2451: $ 2957¢ $ 38,08t $ 43,33¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (43¢) (187) (861) (390
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 49,60( 40,04+ 97,19: 79,56:
Impairments of depreciable properties 58¢ — 58¢ —
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 928 2,092 1,95¢ 4,107

Impairments of depreciable properties — — — 1,02(

Impairment of investment in unconsolidated affdiat — — 1,35¢ —

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties — (20 (955) (437)
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets — 1,851 — 4,05t

Impairments of depreciable properties — 1,06¢€ — 2,19¢

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties — (13,167 (389 (14,40°)
Funds from operations 75,18¢ 61,27: 136,97¢ 119,04¢
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,254 (1,254
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 7455¢ $ 60,64F $ 135,720 $ 117,79
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 08C $ 0.7¢C $ 14€ $ 1.37
Weighted average shares outstanding) 93,31 86,63: 93,17: 85,75:

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivaler

In addition, the Company believes net operatingoime from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Compangtoperty operating performance because such anepriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in ownéal estate assets and a perspective not immedagiphrent from net income or FFO. °
Company defines NOI as rental and other revenums ftontinuing operations, less rental property atiter expenses from continu
operations. The Company defines cash NOI as NG #&mightine rent and lease termination fees. Other REITes/ rase differer
methodologies to calculate NOI and same property. NO

As of June 30, 2014 , our same property portfotinsisted of 256 in-service office, industrial amdail properties encompassi2§.¢
million rentable square feet that were wholly owdeding the entirety of the periods presented (fdamuary 1, 2013 to June 30, 2Q1As of
December 31, 2013, our same property portfolicstted of 247 in-service office, industrial andarkeproperties encompassi2g.1 millior
rentable square feet that were wholly owned dutiregentirety of the periods presented (from Jan@a®012 to December 31, 201.3The
change in our same property portfolio was due ¢oatidition of eight office properties encompasdir@million rentable square feet acqui
during 2012 and one newly developed office properngompassing 0.1 million rentable square feetgala service during 2012 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiesymmir same property portfolio were $24.9 milliand $5.5 million for thehree month
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, a®d7 $aillion and $9.5 million for the six months et June 30, 2014 and 2013
respectively. Rental property and other expendateckto properties not in our same property pbdfeere $9.8 million and $2.8 milliofor
the three months ended June 30, 2014 and 201Beatdgely, and $19.3 million and $5.0 million fdret six months ended June 30, 2@
2013, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlaame property NOI:

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of investment properties and activity in
unconsolidated affiliates

Other income
Interest expense
General and administrative expenses
Impairments of real estate assets
Depreciation and amortization
Net operating income from continuing operations
Less — non same property and other net operatoarie
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations

Rental and other revenues
Rental property and other expenses
Total net operating income from continuing operatims
Less — non same property and other net operatoayrie
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations

Total same property net operating income from caritig operations
Less — straight-line rent and lease terminatios fee

Same property cash net operating income from continng operations
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Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 17,89¢ $ 14,61: $ 31,11¢ $ 2547¢
(1,428 (1,617 (2,827 (3,236
21,21 23,28¢ 42,57¢ 47,15¢
8,73: 8,391 19,44° 18,97¢
58¢€ — 58¢€ —
50,44: 40,62« 98,60¢ 80,71:
97,44 85,30: 189,51( 169,08
(15,12) (2,715 (29,419 (4,490
$ 82,32¢ $ 82,58t $ 160,090 $ 164,59:
$ 152,72: $ 132,61¢ $ 301,17¢ $ 262,99
55,27¢ 47,31, 111,66! 93,91:
97,44 85,30: 189,51( 169,08
(15,127 (2,715 (29,419 (4,490
$ 82,32¢ $ 82,58t $ 160,090 $ 164,59:
$ 82,32¢ $ 82,58¢ ¢ 160,09. $ 164,59:
(2,340 (3,300 (5,088 (8,217

$ 79,98 $ 79,28t $ 155,000 $ 156,38:
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as of Braber 31, 2013, see "Quantitative and QualitatiigelDsures About Market Risk"
our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure cositaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportéunvitie time periods specified in -
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CR@ tancluded that the disclosure controls and plees of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoétthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting &athe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. There were no amirginternal control over financial reporting itigrthe three months endédne 30, 201
that materially affected, or are reasonably likielymaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtreer financial reporting. There were ¢
no changes in internal control over financial rejpgr during the three months ended June 30, 204¥materially affected, or are reason:
likely to materially affect, the Operating Partri@pss internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth information relatéml shares of Common Stock surrendered by emplojeestisfy tax withholdin
obligations in connection with the vesting of reetrd stock during the second quarter of 2014 :

Total Number of Weighted
Shares Average Price
Purchased Paid per Share
April 1 to April 30 — —
May 1 to May 31 37C % 40.4¢
June 1 to June 30 = =
Total 37C  $ 40.4¢
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number Description
4.1 Form of 3.20% Notes due June 15, 2021 (filed as gfathe Company's Current Report on For{ 8ated May 27
2014)
4.2 Officers' Certificate Establishing the Terms of tB&20% Notes, dated as of May 27, 2014 (filed ag pathe
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May?P714)
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Company
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of ther@jing Partnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8abanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8a@banes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pastnier
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of $a#banes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80ée Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8a&banes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pastmier
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
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101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagébDocument

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgb Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dailisechis report to be signed on
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole geneeatmer

By: /s] Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: July 29, 2014
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Exhibit 12.1

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2014

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 37,06¢
Fixed charges 45,79¢
Capitalized interest (1,509
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 1,21¢
Total earnings $ 82,57¢

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:

Contractual interest expense $ 41,39(
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,451
Financing obligations interest income (26€)
Capitalized interest 1,50
Interest component of rental expense 1,721
Total fixed charges 45,79¢
Preferred Stock dividends 1,25¢
Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends $ 47,05:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.8C

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends 1.7¢




Exhibit 12.2

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2014

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 37,06¢
Fixed charges 45,79¢
Capitalized interest (1,509
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 1,21¢
Total earnings $ 82,57¢

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:

Contractual interest expense $ 41,39(
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,451
Financing obligations interest income (26€)
Capitalized interest 1,50
Interest component of rental expense 1,721
Total fixed charges 45,79¢
Preferred Unit distributions 1,25¢
Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions $ 47,05:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.8C

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions 1.7¢




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 29, 2014

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 29, 2014

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 29, 2014

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 29, 2014

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwedeiroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfer period endedune 30, 201
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl) Edward J. Fritsch, President and Chief Exec
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

July 29, 2014




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwedeiroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfer period endedune 30, 201
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiissio the date hereof (the “Reportl)),Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President and €
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@t Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

July 29, 2014




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended June 30, 2014 as filed with the Seesrand Exchange Commission on the date hereef“Report”),|, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBagtnership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#nbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner
July 29, 2014




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended June 30, 2014 as filed with the Seesrand Exchange Commission on the date hereef“Rieport”), |, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHighwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef @perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8@tdarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe General Partner

July 29, 2014



